Main Street Advisory Board Minutes - September 5, 2024

<u>Call to Order: Chairman Cossart called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.</u>
a. Decorum Guidelines – Chairman Cossart referred to the guidelines

<u>Roll:</u> Chairman Cossart; Directors Jones, Lay, Anderson-Cook, Walker, Moore and Presswood were present.

<u>Staff</u>: Alicia Hartley – Downtown Manager, Holly Wharton – Economic Development Director, Bryan Wood – Community Development Director, and Christine Sewell – Recording Clerk

Guests: Phillips Jones and Heather Anderson

- 2. Guests/Speakers
 - a. Bryan Wood -- Downtown Historic District Review

Mr. Wood advised a Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) had been established in 2022 and was first tasked with the Washington-Evergreen area, which has since been adopted and began working in the downtown at the start of 2024 and what is being presented to the board is the first draft of the designation report. Mr. Wood explained the process which includes the designation of a property as being contributing or noncontributing and the report has been sent to the Department of Community Affairs (DCA) for review and comment. Once comments are received HPC will review and make any modifications, hold public hearings, with proper notification being sent to owners and occupants and the final decision will be made by Council. The proposed area consists of approximately 30 acres located at the center of Perry and contains 89 properties which create the core of downtown. The district is bounded generally on the East by Macon Road, on the North by Commerce Street, on the West by the railroad, and on the South by Main Street including most properties on the south side of the street. Mr. Wood advised design guidelines are followed, and it is only for the exterior of what is visible from the right-of-way and the intent is to keep the historical context of the building and the same for new or additions. Mr. Wood as a reminder the downtown overlay district would still be applicable if adopted and the process for applicants' would be a COA review by MSAB and then HPC, which meets the following week after MSAB, this was done to cause as little delay as possible. Chairman Cossart suggested a joint meeting with the HPC and MSAB, such as the DDA has requested to ensure the goals of both boards and the processes that may occur with the adoption of the district; staff concurred.

- 3. Citizens with Input None
- 4. Old Business

a. Lighting discussion updates – Ms. Hartley advised she had spoken to a few vendors with only Unique Landscaping providing an estimate from previous discussions for new lights on (16) trees with a commercial grade mini lights at a cost of \$8500. For additional electrical as discussed Moye Electric provided an estimate of \$8575. Director Moore suggested before lighting is installed the trees be trimmed; Ms. Hartley advised she will coordinate with Public Works. Director Presswood asked how often maintenance would be performed; Ms. Hartley advised on a quarterly basis. Chairman

Cossart asked if it could be done by December 1st. On conclusion of discussion, it was decided to proceed with the project in phases, the first phase being the tree lighting and the second being the electrical as a request to the DDA will be made to assist in funding. Director Presswood motioned to approve phase 1 in the amount of \$8500.00; Director Lay seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

5. New Business

a. Certificate of Appropriateness Review - 909 Main Street

Mr. Wood advised the request is for the replacement of the roofing on the marquee awning, with a color change submitted of red. Except for the color change, this would be ordinary maintenance and repair. The application states the red will better match and blend with the building brick. Staff is concerned the red roof is not a color used traditionally in downtown Perry and is dissimilar to colors in the approved palette. Since the brick color is not the same red as the proposed roof, the two colors may clash with one another. Staff suggests dark green or black as they are more traditional metal roof colors in the downtown area. Mr. Jim Lay on behalf of Perry Players advised the board of directors had spoken an agreed to shiny black, and a sample was provided for review.

Director Jones motioned to approve the request with the shiny black color as presented; Director Presswood seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved with Director Lay abstaining from the vote.

b. Certificate of Appropriateness Review - 805 Commerce Street

Mr. Wood advised the request was to increase the size of the projecting sign. It was advised the updated sign ordinance allows a maximum of six square feet for projecting signs in the downtown district and this is also the maximum area for projecting signs in all zoning districts. Mr. Wood noted the projecting sign at the Muse Theater across the street is a historic sign and was permitted to be re-established under the prior sign ordinance. Staff is recommending denial of the application.

Director Jones motioned to deny the application as submitted; Director Lay seconded; all in favor and was unanimously recommended for denial.

c. Certificate of Appropriateness Review - 1139 Macon Road

Mr. Wood advised the request was to paint the body of the building Benjamin Moore OC-9 "Ballet White", and trim Benjamin Moore HC-190 "Black" and noted while the proposed colors are not in the approved color palette, black and white have been approved separately and in combination and the adjacent building is painted similar colors and approval is recommended.

Director Moore motioned to approve as submitted; Director Jones seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

d. Certificate of Appropriateness Review - 815 Carroll Street

Mr. Wood advised the request was to paint the body of the building "Drop Cloth" (brand not identified), trim "Pointing" (brand not identified), shutters Benjamin Moore

"Chelsea Gray", and doors "Calluna" (brand not identified). As well, replace doors on Carroll and Ball Streets with ³/₄ glass wood doors and increase the thickness of the column and install a planter adjacent to the building and bistro tables along both street fronts. Mr. Wood noted, the proposed colors are not in the approved color palette, but the colors are white to neutral, and the door color is a very pale lavender. The proposed doors are more appropriate to the commercial character of the building than the existing and increasing the thickness of the columns is more appropriate than the existing ones. Staff has no issues with the planter and tables, provided adequate pedestrian access is maintained along the sidewalks.

Director Moore motioned to approve as submitted; Director Walker seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

e. Certificate of Appropriateness Review - 725 Commerce Street

Mr. Wood advised the request was to remove the brick planters attached to the front of the building. Mr. Wood also noted, the building was not historically significant, and the planters are inconsequential architecturally and actually block the storefront and approval is recommended.

Director Jones motioned to approve as submitted; Director Moore seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

f. Façade Grant Application – 1139 Macon Road

Ms. Hartley advised the request is for repainting the building in the amount of \$1000.00. Ms. Hartley also advised when the building was completly rehabbed a grant had not been applied for an is recommending the allotted reward.

Director Presswood motioned to approve the façade grant award of \$1000.00; Director Jones seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

g. Façade Grant Application - 815 Carroll Street

Ms. Hartley advised as presented in the COA application the proposed changes fall under the major improvement category and recommends an award of \$2500.00.

Director Moore motioned to approve façade grant award of \$2500.00; Director Anderson-Cook seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

h. Approve August 1, 2024, minutes

Director Presswood motioned to approve as submitted; Director Jones seconded; all in favor and was unanimously approved.

- i. Approve August financials tabled
- 6. <u>Chairman Items</u> Chairman Cossart reminded everyone of the of the sidewalk sale on September 7th. Director Moore also commended Ms. Hartley on her recent presentation at the annual Georgia Downtown Conference, which she, the Chairman and Director

Jones attended. Director Moore advised attendees were impressed with the support the board receives from the City.

7. Downtown Manager's Report

Downtown Projects update - Ms. Hartley advised Trattoria di Napoli is open, Central Computer Services located a small office on Washington Street in an existing building by CVS. Sole Shoe Company has expanded in the adjacent building that was Massey Gordon's office. Ms. Hartley advised she had received a request from Hargray for social media promotion where they will be giving away downtown dollars; the board had some concern with the promotion as it could set a precedent, and staff did as well, however, requested Ms. Hartley inquire if they would be willing to become a sponsor for the upcoming Beer, Bourbon & BBQ. Ms. Hartley advised the photo booth project has been placed on hold as management felt the project did not fit with the visioning for downtown and has not been approved for any other locations; Ms. Hartley advised she will propose alternate locations at a later date. Ms. Wharton advised this is an item that can be discussed with the September 30th visioning meeting with the Mayor; it was suggested the placemaking committee also be included. With regard to placemaking they are working on potential projects that are best at serving the community not necessarily a physical impact. Ms. Hartley reviewed upcoming training opportunities.

8. Promotion Committee Report – Ms. Hartley advised the Drink & Dine campaign has concluded and provided a recap report. Warehouse sale is Saturday. Proposed Ghouls Night out was denied by Council as they desired to keep with the events already approved, however, there are merchants willing to do a late-night shopping event that would not involve the need of city services for road closures, etc. Beer, Bourbon & BBQ is approaching and Live on Five continues. Director Presswood asked about the Veterans' banners and the associated cost and if the banner was retained by the city for future use. Ms. Hartley advised the board had approved the cost and Council concurred and recommended including General Courtney Hodges Blvd. and to date only four applications have been submitted. Director Presswood felt there should not be a charge and the City keeps the banner for reuse the next year; Ms. Hartley advised the promotion has only been approved for 2024, but if the board agreed there could be no cost.

Director Walker left the meeting at 5:20pm.

- 9. <u>Update on Downtown Development Authority –</u> Chairman Cossart advised the board is diligently working on the redevelopment of the 700 block of Carroll Street and has met with one interested developer and two more are scheduled.
- 10. <u>Other –</u> None
- 11. <u>Adjourn:</u> there being no further business to come before the board the meeting was adjourned at 5:36pm.

Approved 10.03.24